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_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Q&A for Request for Concept Notes for Diet Quality Metric Development and Validation 

Updated June 1, 2018 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Subject: Request for Concept Notes for the Development and Validation of Metrics of Diet 

Quality for Non Pregnant Non Lactating (NPNL) Women of Reproductive Age (WRA) in Low- and 

Middle-Income Countries (LMICs) 

Issued on: May 14, 2018 

Application Submission Deadline: June 15, 2018 

 

 

Q1) When and how will responses to questions submitted on the Request for Concept Notes be made 
publicly available? 
 
A1) We will post responses to questions submitted on a rolling basis, and post the submitted questions 

and responses to the questions at the following link: https://www.aliveandthrive.org/procurement-

solicitation.  We will not send responses to the questions submitted via email, so please check back to 

the above site with some level of frequency to ensure you have the most up to date information in 

relation to the Request for Concept Notes.  We will only respond to questions submitted prior to the 

stated deadline of May 28, 2018 5pm EST. 

Q2) What is the budget limit for Concept Notes? 
 
A2) We have not set a budget limit for the Concept Notes to be submitted.  We ask applicants to budget 
how much the proposed work will cost, given the parameters for the requested work that is given in the 
Request for Concept Notes.  Please keep in mind that applicants should plan to complete the requested 
work within a 24 month period, and that the contract mechanism that will be used for the work is a 
fixed price purchase order.  Please also note that Concept Notes will be scored against the criteria listed 
in Section 8.  Financial scoring (cost effectiveness and cost reasonableness of the work proposed) is 25% 
of the total scoring criteria. 
 
Q3) How much detail should be included in Concept Notes to be submitted? 
 
A3) Please refer to the Concept Note Instructions given in Section 5 of the Request for Concept Notes for 
the full set of information that should be included in the Concept Notes to be submitted.  Please also 
note that Concept Notes should be no more than 6 pages (shorter concept notes are welcome), 
formatted with 1” margins, and should use a minimum font size of 11 point.   
 

https://www.aliveandthrive.org/procurement-solicitation
https://www.aliveandthrive.org/procurement-solicitation
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Q4) Is it of interest to focus the metric development and validation work on NPNL WRA only? 
 
A4) Yes, at this time, Intake is interested only in supporting work for the development and validation of 
diet quality metrics for NPNL WRA.  Ideally, any diet quality metric developed for NPNL WRA would also 
be appropriate and meaningful for pregnant and lactating women, and/or adolescents and/or men, but 
in the absence of knowing if all of these demographic groups can be addressed by the same set of diet 
quality metrics, as a first step, in this Request for Concept Notes, Intake is prioritizing advancing the 
development of metrics for NPNL WRA, defined as non pregnant non lactating girls and women 15-49 
years of age. Please refer to Section 3i of the Request for Concept Notes for more details. 
 
Q5) Many diet quality indices have been developed and tested; do you want to see new and better 
metrics? 
 
A5) Please refer to Section 1F, 1G and 1H of the Request for Concept Notes for a discussion of some of 
the limitations of current diet quality indices for use in LMICs. Please also refer to Section 3ii, 3iii and 3iv, 
respectively for: a summary of the dietary dimensions/characteristics of interest to reflect in diet quality 
metrics to be developed; the desired uses of the metrics to be developed and validated; and the desired 
features of the metrics to be developed and validated. 
 
Q6) Can existing data be used for the metric development and validation work? 
 
A6) Yes, in fact, we expect that analysis of secondary data sources will likely be the primary method by 
which the metrics of interest would be developed and validated.  We recognize that later steps of 
validation involving primary data collection may also be desirable, however, Intake will not support 
primary data collection under this Request for Concept Notes.  Please refer to Section 3v and Section 4 
for more detail.  Several data sets that are currently publicly available, which could be included in a 
proposed plan for metric validation are listed in Appendix 2. 
 
Q7) What’s the ultimate goal of the project? 
 
A7) Intake’s primary interest in supporting the development and validation of diet quality metrics is to 
advance the availability of metrics for use at the policy or national program level in LMICs. The key 
target audience for the metrics is therefore policy makers and government representatives in Ministries 
of Health, Ministries of Agriculture, and Ministries of Finance in LMICs.  Please refer to Sections 3ii, 3iii, 
and 3iv of the Request for Concept Notes for: a summary of the dietary dimensions/characteristics of 
interest to reflect in the diet quality metrics to be developed; the desired uses of the metrics to 
developed and validated; and the desired features of the metrics to be developed and validated. 
 
Q8) Is China a low- and middle-income country? 
 
A8) We are using the World Bank’s most recent classification (June 2017) for identification of low- and 
middle-income countries.  In that classification, China is defined as an upper-middle income country. 
 
Q9) What type of data sets should be prioritized for the metric validation work? 

A9) Please refer to section 3vB4 (p. 7) of the Request for Concept Notes where Intake outlines 

considerations related to the number, type, and characteristics of data sets to be used for the metric 

validation work.  Note also that although the metrics to be developed and validated are for use in low- 

and middle-income countries (including upper-middle income countries), Intake recommends that 
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applicants include low- and lower middle-income countries among the data sets to be analyzed for the 

validation work. 

Q10) The Request for Concept Notes indicates that Intake is interested only in supporting the 

development of metrics that will not require the use of a food composition table for tabulation. 

However, the Request for Concept Notes includes "Total fat energy" among the list of prioritized 

dimensions and characteristics of diet quality. How do you reconcile this, as total fat energy cannot be 

computed without the use of a food composition table. 

A10) Thank you for this question.  We agree that total fat energy cannot be computed without the use 

of a food composition table.  Nevertheless, total fat energy is a characteristic of diet quality that is of 

interest to Intake.  We are asking if applicants can think of a proxy that could be collected to provide 

information related to total fat energy.  There may be innovative ways to think about obtaining useful 

information related to this dietary characteristic that do not require the use of a food composition table 

for analysis – though any such proxy would clearly not be able to capture information on total fat energy 

as accurately as a measure that used a food composition table.   

Q11) The Request for Concept Notes indicates that Intake is interested only in supporting the 

development of metrics that will not require the use of a food composition table for tabulation.  Does 

this imply that it is not of interest to develop a metric to capture “Energy adequacy”? 

A11) Energy adequacy is indeed an aspect of diet quality that Intake is interested in capturing with the 

metrics to be developed and validated (please refer to Section 3iiC of the Request for Concept Notes).  

We are requesting that applicants consider if there may be relatively simply ways to capture a proxy for 

energy adequacy that would not require the use of a food composition table for analysis.  We recognize 

that any such metric to be developed and validated would clearly not be able to capture information on 

energy adequacy as accurately as a measure that used a food composition table.   

Q12) Will Intake make one award only, or several?  Will more than one proposal be considered for 

funding? 

A12) Depending on the quality and cost of proposals submitted, Intake may decide to fund the 

development and validation of multiple metrics. There is no a priori limit to how many awards may be 

made; or the number of awards that could be made to any one applicant, though there is a funding 

ceiling that will guide how much of the proposed work can be supported.  Ideally, Intake is interested in 

supporting the development of both a metric that provides a proxy reflective of a composite measure of 

overall diet quality as well as metrics that provide a proxy to measure individual 

dimensions/characteristics of diet quality.  To the extent that a metric reflecting a composite measure of 

overall diet quality can be disaggregated into its constituent parts to identify which individual 

dimensions or characteristics of the diet are problem areas, this is preferred.  Please also refer to 

Section 3iiB and Section 4D of the Request for Concept Notes where this topic is addressed. 

Q13) If a proposal is accepted for funding, should the work on metric development and validation be 

limited to the country of the applicant applying or should the work be a multi-country study? 

A14) Intake is interested in supporting the development and validation of metrics of diet quality for use 

in low- and middle-income countries.  We are hoping that the metrics to be developed will be valid to 

use across low- and middle-income countries; therefore, the work to develop and validate the metrics 

should be designed to justify the use of the metrics in low- and middle-income countries.  The work 

should not be designed to justify the use of the metrics in only one or a few low- and middle-income 
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countries.  Intake has highlighted several considerations for applicants to address in the Concept Note, 

which pertain to the core issues that this question raises. Please refer to Section 3vB4 and Section 5C of 

the Request for Concept Notes for these details. 

Q15) How should an applicant go about the work to develop and validate the metrics of diet quality in a 

country that has limited data on the target group (non pregnant non lactating women of reproductive 

age) specified in the Request for Concept Notes? 

A15) Intake does not expect that all countries will have the type of data required (e.g., quantitative 24 

hour recall dietary intake data or semi-quantitative food frequency data) to validate the metrics of diet 

quality to be developed.  Rather, Intake is requesting that applicants consider the type of data that 

would be necessary to validate the metrics to be developed; what countries have the type of data 

required available; what characteristics should be reflected across the data sets used for the metric 

validation work; and how the data sets with these characteristics can be accessed.  Please note that this 

last question of data set access does not need to be addressed in the Concept Notes that are due for 

submission on June 15, 2018 at 5pm EST, but applicants invited to submit a full proposal can expect that 

this question of access will be asked.  Please refer to Section 3v4 and Section 5C of the Request for 

Concept Notes for additional details related to this question.  In addition, please note that links to data 

sets currently identified as publicly available are included in Appendix 2 of the Request for Concept 

Notes. 

Q16) The Request for Concept Notes indicates that Intake will not fund primary data collection under 

this procurement mechanism.  Is this due to funding or time availability?  Could an applicant allocate 

time for data collection within the 24 months proposed for the full project? 

A16) Intake will not consider funding Concept notes that include primary data collection as a component 

of the work to be undertaken.   

Q17) Can a consortium respond to the Request for Concept Notes? 

A17) Yes, teams of researchers, both within and across institutions, are welcome to respond to Intake’s 

Request for Concept Notes.  In the case of inter-institutional collaborations, a lead institution should be 

identified.  Please also refer to Section 4B of the Request for Concept Notes, where this is addressed.   

Q18) If there is an inter-institutional collaboration with a lead institution specified and the Concept Note 

and proposal ultimately funded, would it be possible for both/all institutions to each have direct 

contracts with Intake for their portion of the grant?   

A18) Intake is open to this type of contractual arrangement.  The preference, however, would be to 

issue one agreement with a lead institution, with contractual management of the collaborating 

institutions to be handled by that lead institution.  As direct contracting with multiple institutions that 

apply as an inter-institutional collaboration would represent a higher administrative burden on Intake, 

this may be considered in the evaluation process.    

Q19) If there is an inter-institution collaboration proposed, how is it suggested to prepare the Concept 

Note?  Is it sufficient to describe the roles of each institution and associated personnel, or are official 

statements or approvals needed from all involved institutions? 

A19) At the Concept Note stage, it is sufficient to describe the roles of each institution and associated 

personnel. 
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Q20) Are official statements or approvals (e.g. from an Office of Sponsored Programs) needed from the 

institution (or lead institution) submitting the Concept Note? 

A20) Intake does not require this at the Concept Note stage, but each institution will of course need to 

follow their own internal policies.   

Q21) Does Intake specify any academic rank or title required for a person to be a Principal Investigator 

for the Concept Note/Proposal to be considered for funding? 

A21) For a Concept Note/Proposal to be considered for funding, Intake does not require a specific 

academic rank or title for an individual to be named as a Principal Investigator.  However, please note 

that, although not required, a doctoral level degree (PhD, ScD, DrPH) is strongly preferred for the 

Principal Investigator; and the evaluation of team capability will be scored accordingly.   

Q22) If an inter-institutional collaboration is proposed, would it be expected and/or allowed that there 

would be a Principal Investigator at each institution?  Can more than one Principal Investigator be 

proposed, either at different institutions or within the same institution? 

A22) Intake expects that at least one Principal Investigator will be identified/named for each Concept 

Note submitted.  Multiple Principal Investigators (i.e. Co-Principal Investigators) are allowed, both within 

the same institution and at different institutions; however, in the case that Co-Principal Investigators are 

identified/named on the Concept Note submitted, details should be provided regarding the 

differentiation of roles/responsibilities of the individuals.  

Q23) How will the review process be carried out, and what are the safeguards on intellectual property 

contain with the Concept Notes/Proposals? 

A23) The scoring/evaluation of Concept Notes will follow the scoring criteria detailed in Section 8C of 

the Request for Concept Notes.  The Concept Notes/Proposals submitted to Intake will not be shared 

with external parties, except in the case where an external expert(s) has been identified to provide 

comments on the Concept Notes/Proposals, in which case the external expert(s) will be required to sign 

a Non-Disclosure Agreement, prior to Intake sharing the Concept Notes/Proposals with the external 

expert(s).  Under the Non-Disclosure Agreement, external expert(s) with whom Intake has shared 

Concept Notes/Proposals for review will be instructed to keep all information contained in the Concept 

Notes/Proposals confidential, and to destroy the Concept Notes/Proposals received, once the review 

period is completed. Intake will keep all information contained in Concept Notes/Proposals not selected 

for funding confidential but will retain copies of all Concept Notes/Proposals submitted for record-

keeping/auditing purposes. Proposals that are selected for funding by Intake become the property FHI 

Solutions.  

Q24) Section 4C-D of the Request for Concept Notes implies that the same applicant can submit multiple 

Concept Notes. To clarify the meaning of “applicant”: (a) Can the same Principal Investigator/research 

group submit multiple Concept Notes? (b) Can different research teams from within the same university 

submit different Concept Notes that may be unrelated to each other? 

A24) (a) Yes, the same Principal Investigator/research group can submit multiple Concept Notes. (b) Yes, 

different research teams from within the same university can submit different Concept Notes that may 

be unrelated to each other. 
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Q25) Can you please comment on how much of the proposed metric idea should already be conceived 

for the Concept Note versus describing the development of a potential metric around specified 

concepts?  It seems that the development and validation of the metric could result in a different end-

product than what is originally conceived. 

A25) Thank you for this question. We agree that the process of validating the metric could result in an 

end-product that is not possible to fully specify from the outset.  At the Concept Note stage, we expect 

that applicants should be able to describe the evidence-base underlying the proposed metric to be 

developed as well as the conceptual thinking and any specific principles that will drive the construction 

of the proposed metric to be developed.  The idea around the metric proposed for development and 

validation should be described as concretely as possible in the Concept Note, though we recognize that 

it will not be possible to fully elaborate all details of the metric end-product.  Please also refer to Section 

8C of the Request for Concept Notes for the detailed criteria of how Concept Notes will be 

scored/evaluated. 

Q26) Can you please comment on whether we are expected to already have knowledge of or access to 

specific datasets that have the characteristics we foresee to be needed or useful for the validation? 

A26) At the Concept Note stage, we do not expect applicants to necessarily have knowledge of or access 

to datasets that have the characteristics that are foreseen by the applicant to be needed or useful for 

the validation.  Intake is currently working to identify data sets (beyond those already listed in Appendix 

2 of the Request for Concept Notes) that could be made available for the metric development and 

validation work to be funded; and will provide an updated list of data sets that are available for the work 

when the Request for Proposals is shared with invited applicants.  At the same time, applicants may 

wish to begin to explore what datasets exist that have the characteristics foreseen by the applicant to be 

needed or useful for validation, and to think about a proposed plan for how access to those data sets 

might be able to be obtained – as Intake expects to include some questions along these lines in the 

Request for Proposals that we will share with invited applicants. 

Q27) Are there any geographic restrictions on who may respond to Intake’s Request for Concept Notes? 

A27) Intake’s Request for Concept Notes is open for application by entities from all countries.  There are 

no geographic restrictions on who may respond to the Request for Concept Notes. 

 

 


